
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

JANUARY 6, 2015 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following minutes: 
i. December 8, 2014 – Special Board Meeting 
ii. December 16, 2014 – Regular Board Meeting  

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider appointments to Mandan Community Beautification 
Committee. 

2. Increasing the Animal Control Officer Position from Thirty-Five 
Hours, Three Quarter Time to Forty Hours, Full Time. 

3. Consider $500 budget amendment to the 2014 Street Department 
Capital Outlay budget. 

4. Consider the following abatements/exemptions: 
i. Correction – Change to reflect exempt status for land owned 

by Mandan Park District. 
ii. Complete Reassessment – Value change on land – Michael 

Martin. 
iii. Assessor Error – Missed 2-Year Tax exemption – Jamie & 

Carina Friesz 
iv. Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property 

Tax Exemption – High Plains Apache 
v. Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property 

Tax Exemption – Spence Koenig 
vi. Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River Properties 

(WW Ranch) for 2013 
vii. Complete Reassessment – reduction in Market value – Lloyd 

Motl (Revised) 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

January 6, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 
viii. Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for 

Improvements to Commercial Building – Kevin Ressler. 
ix. Complete Reassessment – Reduction in Market Value – 

Lorraine Carlson 
5. Consider approval of Change Order #8 for SID # 176 (Lakewood 6th 

and 7th) 
6. Consider approval of Change Order #9 for SID # 176 (Lakewood 6th 

and 7th) 
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Introduction of new Police Officer Tricia Schmeichel 
2. Consider appointments to Planning and Zoning Commission. 
3. Consider changes to sick leave accrual and addition of long term 

disability coverage. 
4. For information item. Addendum No. 2 was issued this morning for 

the Mandan Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization 
project. Most notably, the addendum changes the bid date from 
Thursday, January 8th to Tuesday, January 13th.  

 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Second Consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1196 to 
amend and re-enact Chapter 12-02 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to a Class WB (Winery/Brewery) liquor license. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. January 20, 2015 – 5 p.m. start 
2. February 3, 2015 
3. February 17, 2015 – 5 p.m. start 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at Mandan City 
Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of citizens throughout 
the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are encouraged to make 
arrangements with the Board President or the City Administrator prior to the meeting. 
Comments should be made to the Board and not to individuals in the audience and be 
related to City operations and programs. The Board will not hear personal complaints 
against any person connected with the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the 
agenda, arrangements must be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board 
President. The Board reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public 
participation. The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 



City of Mandan-Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 8, 2014 

Page 1 of 6 

The Mandan City Commission met in a Special Meeting at 6:30 p.m. on 

December 8, 2014 at Mandan City Hall, 205 2
nd

 Ave NW, in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich 

Meeting Room. In attendance for the Mandan City Commission were Mayor Van Beek, 

Commissioners Tibke, Rohr, Laber and Braun. City Department Heads present were City 

Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Finance Director Welch, and Business 

Development & Communications Director Huber. Also in attendance were Mandan Park 

Board Members, Arenz, Knoll, Allen and Keller. Amanda Lantz was present representing 

Dakota Star Gymnastics.  

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider a sales tax for the purpose of public and recreational facilities to be 

constructed in the City of Mandan to be voted on in June 2015. Jason Arenz, President of 

the Mandan Park District, explained the process regarding this project. They met with all 

the user groups throughout the previous 18 months. The consensus was that they need to 

address hockey. Mandan is one of two communities in the state that only have one sheet 

of ice. They are trying to find ways to bring a facility that meets the needs of kids in the 

hockey program as well as adult and recreational hockey. Business owners throughout 

the community would like to see facilities in the city that attract employees to their 

community. The number one struggle in our community today from a commercial side is 

employment and to have a pool of employees available for working within our business 

community. Arenz is here tonight to offer what the Park District approved, subject to the 

City approval, which they believe is hopefully a solution to this problem.   

 

Hockey and gymnastics are two of the priorities that the Park District feels need to be 

addressed. The State Committee may not allow the city to host any more gymnastics 

events due to the conditions of the present location. These are huge money makers for the 

gymnastics club. At their meeting tonight the Park Board motioned and approved 

requesting the City of Mandan increase the city sales tax that is collected on an annual 

basis. It would be an amount no less than $15 million to be used to fund construction of 

recreational facilities such as a two sheet hockey rink, gymnastics and the recreational 

facilities as they see fit. The cost of facilities would depend on land acquisition. It would 

be more economical and efficient to have two sheets of ice and gymnastics in one 

location. They want to be good partners and hopefully make it work for everyone 

involved.  

 

Commissioner Tibke inquired whether the Park District had a Facility Study done. Arenz 

replied that they hadn’t officially had one done. The cost estimates for the hockey arena 

as it sits today is roughly about $10 – $10.5 million for a basic two sheet arena. 

Commissioner Tibke questioned where they came up with the $15 million. What does 

that cost estimate include? It would be approximately $10.4 million for the facility alone, 

and depending on land purchases and what they need that could be a wide range.  The 

gymnastics area would be roughly $700,000 to $1 million dollars which would add up to 

about $12 million with the land purchase. In addition there could be the cost overruns 

which are usually standard at 10% which would bring it to about $13 million. The rest 

would be in case something else comes up. Land acquisition is the main uncertainty as to 

what it is going to cost. Their other needs might be to update or relocate the football and 

track fields which might be a good fit for $2.5-$3 million which might take them to the 

$15 million and then they are out as far as the dollar amount goes. 

 



City of Mandan-Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 8, 2014 

Page 2 of 6 

Commissioner Tibke mentioned that she would like a little more comprehensive package 

to include all that is needed and to project further down the road perhaps 15-20 years 

rather than the next 3-5 years. 

 

Arenz brought up that some difficulties that they have come up with are that schools 

cannot benefit from sales tax dollars. They, (the Park District), have been trying to make 

it work for the school system by the Park District owning the property but yet abiding by 

the state statutes. Commissioner Tibke agrees with abiding with state statutes but the 

taxpayers and the community members appreciate collaboration and maximizing 

facilities, space, anything to maximize our dollars but provide facilities and needs for 20 

years.  

 

Mayor Van Beek indicated that if we are going to do it we need to do it right and 

concurred with Commissioner Tibke regarding a comprehensive plan. Arenz replied that 

they also wanted to present something that they know will be able to get on the ballot. 

That’s why they have been trying to bring it in a little.  

 

Amanda Lantz, program director/head coach of Dakota Star Gymnastics, came forward 

to explain details of the current location which included the negative concerns such as the 

number of stairs, lack of handicap accessibility, and the lack of floor space for the 

gymnasts and spectators at their events. Lack of running water at their concession area is 

a health issue. The actual gymnasium area has areas that can’t be utilized due to 

awkwardly placed walls or the balcony stairs that come over the children. The building is 

aging and has there have been roof leaks in the past. With the help of the School Board, 

and fundraisers, DSG purchased a new vault table and yet it is in jeopardy of being 

ruined by the water.  

 

Cole Higlin, Park District Director, presented information regarding the existing facility 

at the All Seasons Arena which is located on school property. They would like to expand 

onto that facility but they are landlocked. There are parking issues. The main thing is that 

it’s a 1985 compressor and chiller system that was “used” when it was installed. It is 

undersized for the facility. They have had problems with the compressor over the last five 

years. At the same time they did cost estimates with JLG@25 Architects, they hired a 

consultant who did a thorough exam of the complete compressor system, piping and 

concrete. At this time an average size compressor unit is about $800,000. To get the high 

end level compressor unit is about $1-1.2 million which doesn’t include replacing the 

concrete in the arena.  

  

Does it make sense to spend $1 million at the existing All Seasons Arena knowing that 

you cannot address the needs for the skaters from today and in the future?  If we were to 

build a second sheet in another location then we would be duplicating staff, equipment, 

and all the things that, if we had one all-inclusive facility, would not be duplicated. The 

motion that the Park Board made tonight was to make sure we can address and do things 

right, not less than the $15 million. Doesn’t mean that we can’t partner with the city with 

some of the needs that the City has. There have been discussions throughout whether it’s 

City Hall, a fire station, or Public Works. Both government entities have needs. We all 

have an issue of how do to fund them. They are just trying to say that this is the dollar 

amount that they need to accomplish their goals and do it right. Hopefully the Park 

District can partner with the City of Mandan for the long term vision of what the city’s 



City of Mandan-Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 8, 2014 

Page 3 of 6 

needs are going to be. What it really comes down to is what can be funded with sales tax 

and if what dollar amount would be passable. 

 

With the motion in this evening’s Park Board meeting they can execute with JLG@25 to 

do the site plan, the special assessments of the infrastructure costs, and actually get 

construction designs. They did a lot of research in advance and it’s given them some 

construction costs. They were revised in July and August to get more up-to-date figures 

and the numbers have been coming in higher. Talking about visionary, from a Park 

District standpoint, what they have presented at numerous public meetings is that if 

money was no option, it would be to add a 2-sheet arena; to add a football and track; 

share the parking lots in a brand new area of our community that can develop with an 

increase in homes, retail and commercial interests. All the things that will bring people in 

to the community that are going to fill our schools, fill our property taxes and increase 

our sales tax. That’s their job is to bring the people in to town by hosting local, regional, 

state, or national tournaments.  

 

The Park District can go after these types of tournaments with a two sheet arena. They 

are limited by only having one sheet of ice due to how long it takes to run a tournament. 

The current gym shortage of space was another topic he expanded on regarding the 

School physical education and athletic needs, as well as the Park District youth and adult 

programs. If money wasn’t an option and the Park District had a multipurpose facility, 

they could get the kids in at a more reasonable time and spread some of the 

responsibilities out at the All Seasons Arena. The School District could use the facility 

during the day for their school hours for their physical education or high school 

programs. The Park District could use it during the evening. They would be reaching a lot 

of people in the big vision of things. 

 

Commissioner Tibke commented that they should plan smartly as far as what needs are to 

be added on.  Whether the needs are right now, immediate or last year? Construction 

costs only go up.  What packaging makes sense? If we are going up to $20 million does 

that cover what needs to be done? Is there a public/private partnership that we can put 

together? The point being that if there are immediate needs last year that we need to 

address now, and we’re going to put this to a vote; there’s an appetite in the community 

with education for people to decide if that’s what they want. To spend a little more to do 

it right now instead of coming back in 5 years with the needs that were needed last year.  

It saves money to do it right the first time. If we could address the immediate issues now 

and couple it with the very strong needs of the hockey, and the very strong needs of the 

gymnastics.  

 

Higlin questioned how many years a sales tax may need to be in place? It’s easier to do it 

for 10 years because the results are easy to see at that point.  There’s a small percentage 

of what the Park District’s needs are. He knows that the City has its needs. There can be a 

collaborated effort put together and we can address everyone’s needs. It’s good 

government even though the School can’t directly benefit. All three entities are all going 

to be involved in some component. The Park District package just has to be put together 

with what options the city is willing to participate, if any. What’s the dollar amount?  The 

Park District by law can only be in debt by $6.2 million. So if they were to do it on their 

own, they would either have to do a revenue bond issue and to back that on property 

taxes. They are capped at 37.84 mils. They are around 37 mils today so they only have 



City of Mandan-Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 8, 2014 

Page 4 of 6 

room to go up about 1-1 ½ mils. To go above that they are going to have to go to the vote 

of the people. 

 

Commissioner Laber brought up the Sports Economic model. They are different than 

regular community facility needs like housing, education, and policing.  A lot of 

communities have done partnerships where the community kicks in ¾ of the cost and the 

rest is done by fundraising and other methods for the remaining ¼ to make sure the 

community is involved and really wants it. She was wondering if that was something they 

were looking into or just going for 100% funding with this sales tax initiative. Higlin 

replied that all the Park District projects require some contribution from the user groups.  

He gave some examples of previous projects and how they were funded. However, none 

of those projects were over a million dollars. This is the first project that is in the $10-$12 

million dollar range. They already have a commitment from the Hockey Club for $1 

million. A portion of the funding could be done for some of the amenities internally and 

the rest would have to be pledged over time. In his tenure he doesn’t recall a fundraiser or 

drive this large as far as from the Park District’s standpoint of this dollar amount. Along 

with the building of the facility, the maintenance would also be a key component that 

would have to be factored in.  They are requiring lease agreements with the main users 

and that’s the Hockey Club, the High School, and the adult leagues.  

 

Commissioner Laber indicated that she always liked to request the “no action 

alternative”.  What does it cost if we don’t do anything? Does the Park District have a 

“rainy day” fund or a set-aside fund if we don’t pay $10 million for a new facility? The 

Park District will be coming to the taxpayers for the $800,000 plus or minus. Higlin 

mentioned what he had stated earlier how they had a $6.2 mil debt ceiling and how they 

still have 3-3.2 left. They have been putting funds aside over the last couple of years and 

have half a million dollars set aside knowing that they are going to have to replace the 

compressor/chiller system. They might have to take a loan out for the remaining 

$300,000. The Mandan Hockey Club has already been partnered with and is aware that if 

the Park District has to make the improvements to the existing All Seasons Arena, they 

are going to be having some financial contribution to that.  

 

Denae Johnson came forward to speak. She is on the Mandan Hockey Board. She has 

been involved with the Hockey Board for eight years. The Hockey Club has grown and 

their biggest need right now is ice for practice time. She expanded on the random times 

for practice as well as the large amount of kids on the ice during those times. Because of 

the lack of a second sheet of ice they are unable to host tournaments. She indicated that 

by having the second sheet of ice they could bring people in who would put money into 

the community by staying at our hotels, shopping in our area, and eating at our 

restaurants. This would contribute back into this fund to make this ice arena available to 

all of us. The Hockey Club brings revenue into the community by having hockey here. 

Same thing goes for Gymnastics.  She also said that they don’t want to go too big because 

we don’t want it to fail; and if it fails, then they aren’t bringing this revenue to town 

either.  

 

Commissioner Rohr questioned the number of participants they have in hockey. Ms. 

Johnson stated that she thought there were about 225 kids in the hockey program. There 

are also 60 from high school. Plus there are adult leagues and open skating. She 

mentioned that it is so congested during these open skates that people might get injured.  



City of Mandan-Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 8, 2014 

Page 5 of 6 

Commissioner Rohr asked if she could give a rough figure as to how many people are 

using the ice and she agreed with 400-500 people using it.   

 

Mayor Van Beek thanked the Park Board for bringing this to the City Commission and 

speaking out on it.  At this time the City is entering into its own Facility Study Needs and 

it will be taken under advisement and bring it back at one of our next City Commission 

meetings.   

 

City Administrator Neubauer commented that right now the City is under its own Facility 

Needs Analysis looking at City Hall and north side Fire Station.  Included in our contract 

with JLG@25 Architects are public input meetings for January and February. Within the 

next 30-60 days we should have a better picture on what those two projects will be 

looking at. At our next Facilities meeting which is the Dec.16 with JLG and internal staff 

we should have a very broad cost estimates of some of the options we are looking at.  

 

Commissioner Tibke asked Administrator Neubauer what the timeline would be if this 

was to go through to a public vote. Neubauer will check with State law but he believes it 

is 70 days prior to a vote.  This would bring it to March or April. Hopefully we would be 

further along because there would be some discussions with the Park District on ballot 

language, polling places, etc. which we would do before February or March. The 

discussions would also include the priorities from the Park District and the City’s point of 

view. 

 

Commissioner Rohr brought up that the key is that we look into what the projected 

revenue that a ½ cent sales tax trade over a certain period of time would be generated and 

how that is going to be split up. The sales tax is only going to generate “x” amount of 

dollars and only certain projects can be paid for. The crucial thing is knowing how much 

revenue is going to be coming in and what does the taxpayer want to pay for. Mayor Van 

Beek indicated that this will all be discussed when this is brought back again at another 

City Commission meeting.  This will all be taken under advisement. 

 

Wayne Papke came forward and asked whether there was any public input at this 

meeting. He questioned why this was a special meeting. Mr. Papke also brought up the 

sales tax and asked about the public getting information on it.  Commissioner Tibke 

stated that there wasn’t a Public Comment section on this agenda. But it’s up to the 

Mayor as to whether to let anyone speak. Commissioner Tibke indicated she had the 

information Mr. Papke gave to them. Mayor Van Beek indicated that this issue will be 

brought up in future public meetings.  This meeting was basically an information meeting 

for the City Commissioners to learn what the Park Board was requesting. Those people 

who presented information this evening were invited to by the Commissioners to speak.  

 

ADJOURN 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Braun moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:25 p.m. Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion. The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed.  

 

/s/ James Neubauer  /s/ Arlyn Van Beek 

James Neubauer,  Arlyn Van Beek  



City of Mandan-Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 8, 2014 

Page 6 of 6 

City Administrator 

 

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 16, 2014 

Page 1 of 6 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on December 

16, 2014 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.    

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Laber, and Braun. Department 

Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police Chief Bullinger, City Attorney 

Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief 

Nardello, Business Development & Communications Director Huber, Planning & 

Engineering Director Froseth, Planner Decker, Assessor Shaw, and Building Official 

Lalim.   

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Commissioner Rohr motioned to approve the 

Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed.   

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone to come 

forward to address items on the Agenda excluding public hearings.  A second 

announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against items on the Agenda.  

Hearing none, this portion of the Public Communications forum was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 

regular meeting held December 2, 2014.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the 

minutes as presented. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

F.         BIDS: 

1.         Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and consider a 2014 Cemetery Budget Amendment to construct. 

Director of Public Works Wright presented a request for a new Grounds Maintenance 

Building. The 2015 Budget includes a Grounds Maintenance Department. He explained 

the reorganization of various part-time positions indicating those positions were 

combined with three existing fulltime employees. The fulltime positions included two 

from the cemetery and one from the forestry department. Thus, all equipment and 

personnel have been combined into one group.  He presented the problems with the 

existing building. He also provided an outline of the construction plans for the new 

building which was developed by Toman Engineering and Al Fitterer Architects who did 

the site-plans and designed the building.   

 

Director Wright said bids were opened on November 13, 2014.  Three single prime bids 

were received that combined general contracting, mechanical and electrical work into one 

bid. Those bids came in higher than individual bids as they were broken out. The low 

bidder for each phase of work was Dakota West Contracting, Bismarck, with the low 

general contractor at $618,950 which includes all alternatives.  Denny’s Electric, 

Dickinson, was the low bidder at $61,530; the low bidder for the mechanical contractor 

was Central Mechanical, Mandan, at $101,800 for a total construction cost of $782,280.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 16, 2014 

Page 2 of 6 

Additional necessary miscellaneous costs determined by Al Fitterer Architect’s came to 

$107,700 for a total estimated project cost of $890,000.  The existing budget for 2014 for 

the Cemetery Maintenance Building was $600,000.  The request before the Commission 

is for a budget Amendment of $290,000 with a recommendation to split the costs at 

$245,000 from the General Fund and $45,000 from the Sales Tax Fund.  Director Wright 

reviewed the Project Timeline which would start with an approval by this Board.  Ground 

breaking is scheduled for April 2015 with a completion date of September 1, 2015.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the award of bids for the construction of the new 

Grounds Maintenance Building at the Cemetery to the low general contractor bidder 

Dakota West Contracting, Bismarck, ND at $618,950 and to Denny’s Electric, Dickinson, 

ND at $61,530; and to Central Mechanical, Inc., Mandan, ND at $101,800 and to approve 

the budget amendment to the 2014 Cemetery budget for $290,000.  Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider approval of monthly bills. 

2.         Consider approval of 2015 salary market adjustments. 

3.         Consider approval of Professional Services Agreement with Stantec for assistance 

in planning and designing a downtown Street Improvement District. 

4.         Consider 2014 fire department budget amendment to accept grant and purchase 

breathing air bottles. 

5.         Consider approval of annual Maintenance Certification agreement with NDDOT.   

6.         Consider approval of PE Reimbursement Agreement for Memorial Highway 

Signals project.  

7.         Consider approval of NDDOT Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 

application on behalf of the City Parks and Recreation department as a sponsoring 

agency.  

8.         Consider for approval games of chance for Miss Rodeo ND Organization at the 

Seven Seas/Baymont Inn from January 3, 2015 through February 27, 2015. 

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.   Commissioner 

Tibke seconded the motion and the amended motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.        OLD BUSINESS: 

 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Report on U.S. Treasury Office of Inspector General Audit of the SSBCI Loan 

Participation Program. Business Development & Communications Director Huber 

explained that the purpose of this matter is to share an audit report with the Commission 

from the Office of Inspector General of the Department of Treasury for the State Small 

Business Credit Initiative and the Mandan, ND, consortium’s use of federal funds.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 16, 2014 

Page 3 of 6 

Director Huber stated that considerable work is done with checks and balances to ensure 

compliance with the US Treasury program expectations.  The U.S. Treasury Office of 

Inspector General Department has determined that the North Dakota Mandan Consortium 

has appropriately loaned funds to small businesses and accurately reported administrative 

costs through the period of the audit which ended March 31, 2014 accounting for use of 

$9.7 million that was either loaned out or committed as Small Business Loans and for 

administrative expenditures.  In summary, it was a clean audit by the Inspector General.  

 

2.        Update on current Street Improvement Projects. Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth stated that this is an update on street improvement projects currently under 

contract.  He said there are 16 projects still in progress with six of them started in 2014.  

The list of projects was provided to the Commission.  With regard to District 163 (Sunset 

Drive), the City staff did a walk-through of that project in June and several deficiencies 

were found along with other corrections.  Those problems should be completed soon. A 

walkthrough of the final project will be done when completed.   

 

3.        Update on forthcoming changes to the city’s sidewalk and driveway standard 

specifications, details, and ordinance sections.  Robert Decker, Principal Planner, stated 

that a list has been developed of the items that need modification for next year.  One key 

concern is that work is being done in a public right-of-way so a requirement will be 

implemented that a contractor will have to have a state license and will be required to  

have proper insurance and bonding.  A list of licensed and bonded contractors was 

obtained from the City of Bismarck.  Going forward contractors will have to have a 

current state license, provide proof of adequate insurance, and bond their work.  

Stamping the work in the concrete will be required.  Planner Decker reviewed a list of 

several standards that will be required and monitored during the course of the project.  

These standards address new sidewalks; however, a standard will be developed wherein 

property owners will be notified about concerns with existing sidewalks.    

 

4.        Consider recommendation from Mandan Airport Authority for new member. 

Jim Lawler, Mandan Municipal Airport Manager reported that there is one Airport 

Authority Committee position open due to a resignation.  An advertisement was 

published in the Mandan News for the vacancy. Six applications were received with one 

applicant withdrawing his application near the end of the period. Five individuals were 

interviewed by the Board and the Airport Manager.  After completion of the interviews 

they recommend the appointment of Chris Brown, who scored the highest amongst those 

interviewed.    

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the appointment Chris Brown for the period of 

one year, ending 12/31/15 to the Mandan Airport Authority.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed.   

 

J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.          Consider Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer Improvement District #32, 

Water and Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street Improvement Districts #161, 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 16, 2014 

Page 4 of 6 

#163, #174, #180, #187 Definitive Improvement Warrants. (Note: Bond sale was 

approved by the Board on December 2, 2014).  Finance Director Welch stated these 

resolutions are necessary to complete the bond sale into the formal bond issue.  He stated 

that all cities are required to sell municipal bonds.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer 

Improvement District #32, Water and Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street 

Improvement Districts #161, #163, #174, #180, #187 Definitive Improvement Warrants. 

(Note: Bond sale was approved by the Board on December 2, 2014). Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.            Consider Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding 

Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. (Note: Relates to Agenda item J.1.)   

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of 

$6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. (Note: Relates to Agenda 

item J.1.)  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No. 1188, an Ordinance to 

amend Title 21 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to Landscaping.     

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second consideration and final passage of 

Ordinance No. 1188, an Ordinance to amend Title 21 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

related to Landscaping. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.          Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1195, An Ordinance to 

Amend and Re-enact Chapter 4-09 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to City  

Employee Pension Plan.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second 

consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1195, An Ordinance to Amend and Re-

enact Chapter 4-09 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to City Employee 

Pension Plan. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

5.         Consider Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned payments resulting 

from public utilities and services supplied, provided or furnished by the City of Mandan. 

City Finance Director Welch stated that this is a Resolution to raise the current NSF 

charge from $10 for each returned item to $20.  This would cover returned checks, 

declined ACH payments, declined credit cards, and closed checking and savings 

accounts.  The purpose for the increase is to cover the costs assessed by financial 

institutions that will incrementally increase costs that affect our costs in contacting the 

customer and re-depositing the funds, which have also increased.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 16, 2014 

Page 5 of 6 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Resolution establishing NSF charge for 

returned payments resulting from public utilities and services supplied, provided or 

furnished by the City of Mandan to be increased to $20 per item.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

6.         First consideration of Ordinance 1196 to amend and re-enact Chapter 12-02 of 

the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to a Class WB (Winery/Brewery) liquor license. 

Business Development & Communications Director Huber stated this Ordinance will 

foster the local Winery/Brewery industry in Mandan.  Currently there is one Brewery, 

Buffalo Commons, in operation and another one, Birddog Brewing Company, is working 

on getting established.  The current Municipal Code had limits on the amount of product 

that could be sold off sale, for example, that were no longer in sync with the NDCC and 

this Ordinance will accomplish that.    

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1196 to 

amend and re-enact Chapter 12-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to a Class 

WB (Winery/Brewery) liquor license. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

7.            Consider Resolution adopting the Morton County Multi-Hazard Mitigation 

Plan.  Tom Doering, Morton County Emergency Manager stated that Morton County has  

a multi-hazard plan that started over a year ago in which some of the Mandan City 

officials played a part in helping with the planning process with a mitigation plan.   

FEMA supports the plan indicating it is a good use of taxpayer money in that it helps 

prevent damage from occurring rather than waiting until after all the damage has 

occurred.  Manager Doering explained the 5-step process involved in the plan.  He stated 

the plan has been approved by FEMA and is tentatively approved until all the resolutions 

from all the participating jurisdictions throughout the county are sent to FEMA and then 

it will be finally approved. There is one pretty significant project that hangs in the 

balance right now. He’s been working with Jeff Wright on that.  It’s for an emergency 

generator for the Plainview reservoir that would also power up the pump station for the 

reservoir. It’s a cost share so it wouldn’t be at the full amount.      

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Resolution adopting the Morton County 

Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.         OTHER BUSINESS   

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Rohr moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:25 p.m. Commissioner Braun 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 16, 2014 

Page 6 of 6 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The CBC passes recommendations for committee member 

appointees for consideration to the City Commission. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   

The CBC has three positions open. Committee openings were advertised in November 

2014 via our website, facebook page, and news release. The deadlines for interested 

parties to submit their letters of interest was December 15, 2014. 

 

Two individuals submitted letters of interest by the deadline. Tammy Lapp-Harris and 

Amy Schmidt, current members, expressed their interest in continuing to serve on the 

committee. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Letters of interest from 2014 are available upon request. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  As the CBC recently (Aug. 2014) recommended these two 

individuals be appointed to fulfill the remaining terms of members who resigned, 

therefore, the Chair and Vice Chair did not feel it necessary to interview them again and 

are comfortable recommending they be appointed to fulfill full three year terms ending 

December 31, 2017  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to appoint Amy Schmidt and Tammy Lapp-Harris for 

full three year terms to the Community Beautification Committee. 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 22, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Consider Community Beautification Committee 

(CBC) recommendation for appointees 

 

  

Consent Agenda No 1 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

         

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Requesting Commission approval to increase the allocated 

1,820 hours for 2015 or the thirty-five hour work week, to a forty hour work week for the 

Animal Control Officer position.   

  

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Mandan Police Department has enforcement 

responsibilities of investigating and enforcement of ordinances as it pertains to animals 

within the City of Mandan.  The position of the Animal Control Officer is currently a 

three quarter-time position of thirty five hours.  In addition to fulfilling the 

responsibilities of the Animal Control Officer, it is used as a support position with 

parking enforcement in the Downtown Business District and scheduling and performing 

maintenance for police department vehicles.  While hiring and training officers and other 

staff positions during the year 2014, the Animal Control Officer provided support to 

Admin and Patrol in many areas.  That support will continue as we work towards filling 

additional vacant positions. 

 

Unexpended funds from salary and benefits in the 2014 budget would be used with the 

funding increase estimated at $5,600, for FY 2015.                

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $5,600 carry-over from the 2014 budget.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Increasing the number of hours of the position from 1,820 hours to 

2,080 hours for an increase of 260 hours. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 31, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

PRESENTER: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

SUBJECT: Increasing the Animal Control Officer Position 

from Thirty-Five Hours, Three Quarter Time to 

Forty Hours, Full Time.   

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 2  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Increasing the Animal Control Officer Position from Thirty-Five Hours, Three 

Quarter Time to Forty Hours, Full Time.   

Page 2 of 2 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request to increase the Animal Control Officer 

position to forty hours per week.   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the request of the Police Department to 

increase the number of hours per week from thirty five hours to forty hours for the 

Animal Control Officer position.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider amending the 2014 Street Department Capital Outlay 

budget for $500 to purchase new power broom for Skid Steer. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The existing power broom was damaged while sweeping 

the Memorial Bridge after a snow storm in November.  While sweeping, the broom caught an 

opening in the concrete Jersey Barrier causing damage beyond repair. The broom damage was 

turned into insurance and a check for replacing the broom was sent to the City, minus the $500 

deductible.   The proposed budget amendment for $500 will cover the total cost of the broom of 

$6,200. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Invoice for broom, Insurance check for old broom 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $500, the 2014 Capital Outlay for Machinery and Equipment can support this 

expenditure.  The balance is approximately $100,550. 

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend amending the 2014 Street Department Capital Outlay 

budget for $500 to purchase new power broom for Skid Steer. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to amend the 2014 Street Department Capital Outlay budget 

for $500 to purchase new power broom for Skid Steer. 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 29, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider $500 budget amendment to the 2014 

Street Department Capital Outlay budget. 

 

  

Consent #3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  January 6, 2015 

Subject:  Consider $500 budget amendment to the 2014 Street Department Capital Outlay 

budget. 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  January 6, 2015 

Subject:  Consider $500 budget amendment to the 2014 Street Department Capital Outlay 

budget. 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 
   



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To change data to reflect exempt status for land 

owned by the Mandan Park District for 2014. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #1425, Lot 5, 

Block 1, West Bay Est. 2
nd

- Replat Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To remove the land value for the 2014 year from $813,200 to $0 

due to exempt status.   

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for abatement, tax statement and plat. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $13,465. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to remove the land value due 

to the Mandan Park District’s exempt status for 2014. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve removing the land value due to the 

Mandan Park District’s exempt status for 2014. 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 17, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw/Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw/Assessor  

SUBJECT: Correction – Change to reflect exempt status for 

land owned by the Mandan Park District 

 

  

Consent No. 4i 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Change to reflect exempt status for land owned by the Mandan Park 

District  

Page 2 of 5 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Change to reflect exempt status for land owned by the Mandan Park 

District  

Page 3 of 5 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Change to reflect exempt status for land owned by the Mandan Park 

District  

Page 4 of 5 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Change to reflect exempt status for land owned by the Mandan Park 

District  

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  A reduction in the land value for the 2014 year for 

Mr. Martin’s property, due to a complete reassessment that was done to reflect 

value change as this is located on the hill of 8
th

 Ave. NE. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #1330, Lots 

19-22 & E ½ Vac 8
th

 Ave NE & S ½ Vac 3
rd

 St. NE, Block 17, Helmsworth-McLean 1
st
 

Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the land value for the 2014 year from $5,000 to $1,100 

to reflect value change for reassessment as this is located on the hill 8
th

 Ave. NE. 

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Abatement form along with GIS maps. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $18. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the land value for 

the 2014 year to $1,100 for Mr. Martin’s property. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for Mr. Martin’s property in 

the 2014 year to a land value of $1,100. 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 17, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw/Assessor  

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw/Assessor  

SUBJECT: Complete Reassessment – Value Change on Land 

for Michael Martin 

 

  

Consent No. 4ii 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment – Value Change on Land for Michael Martin 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment – Value Change on Land for Michael Martin 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment – Value Change on Land for Michael Martin 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   Missed due to assessor error the first 2-year tax exemption 

for new construction of a residential structure for the year 2014. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Mr. & Mrs. Friesz qualify for an exemption of the 

first $75,000 of structure value on a new single family dwelling.   

 

This parcel is also known as Lot 5, Block 2, Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 2nd Addition 

at 700 Farmstead Court SW on Parcel #11096. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application and Abatement form. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $ 1,060 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of the requested exemption for the first $75,000 of 

structure value for the year 2014 on a newly constructed single family dwelling due to all 

qualifications being met. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I recommend a motion to approve the missed 2-year property 

tax exemption due to assessor error of the first $75,000 exemption of structure value for 

the year 2014 on a newly constructed single family dwelling. 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 22, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Assessor Error - Missed 2-Year Tax Exemption for 

Jamie & Carina Friesz for 2014 

 

  

Consent No. 4iii 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Assessor Error - Missed 2-Year Tax Exemption for Jamie & Carina Friesz for 

2014 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Assessor Error - Missed 2-Year Tax Exemption for Jamie & Carina Friesz for 

2014 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   Correction to the New & Expanding Business Property Tax 

Exemption due to supplying verification of jobs created which meets the minimum 

requirements to qualify for 100% property tax exemption in year 3 of its exemption, 

which is 2014. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   High Plains Apache was approved for the 5-Year 

New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption back on August 16, 2011.  This 5-

Year tax exemption was replaced by a tier system:  100% the first 2 years; Year 3 would 

be 75%; Year 4 at 50% and Year 5 at 25%.  However, there is an exemption to be able to 

get 100% for Years 3-5 if there is some job creation after Year 2.  High Plains Apache 

qualifies for the 100% property tax exemption in year 3, which is in 2014, due to meeting 

the requirements of the creation of jobs in the 5-year Business Property Tax Exemption.  

High Plains Apache received 75% exemption in the 2014 year but due to supplying 

verification of jobs created, they should receive the 100% exemption on the structure 

instead.  

 

This parcel is also known as Lot 1, Block 1, Eastside Commercial Park – 1
st
 Replat 

Addition, Address of 1701 Eastside Court SE; Parcel #10146. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Mandan Economic Development Annual Jobs Verification & copy of 

City of Mandan Commissioner’s Meeting August 16, 2011. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $ 1700 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 12, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business 

Property Tax Exemption for High Plains Apache 

 

  

Consent No. 4iv 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 2 of 10 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of adjusting the New & Expanding Business 

Property Tax exemption from 75% to 100% in the year 2014 due to meeting the 

minimum requirements of jobs creation at the end of 2013. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I recommend a motion to approve the adjustment of the New 

& Expanding Business Property Tax exemption from 75% to 100% on the structure value 

in the year 2014 due to meeting the minimum requirements of jobs creation at the end of 

2013. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 3 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 5 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 6 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 7 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 8 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

High Plains Apache 

Page 10 of 10 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   Correction to the New & Expanding Business Property Tax 

Exemption due to supplying verification of jobs created which meets the minimum 

requirements to qualify for 100% property tax exemption in year 3 of its exemption, 

which is 2014. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Mr. Koenig was approved for the 5-Year New & 

Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption back on June 21, 2011.  This 5-Year tax 

exemption was replaced by a tier system:  100% the first 2 years; Year 3 would be 75%; 

Year 4 at 50% and Year 5 at 25%.  However, there is an exemption to be able to get 

100% for Years 3-5 if there is some job creation after Year 2.  Mr. Koenig qualifies for 

the 100% property tax exemption in year 3, which is in 2014, due to meeting the 

requirements of the creation of jobs in the 5-year Business Property Tax Exemption.  Mr. 

Koenig received 75% exemption in the 2014 year but due to supplying verification of 

jobs created, he should receive the 100% exemption on the structure instead.  

 

This parcel is also known as Lot 7 & W 55.66’ of S 287.11’ of Lot 6, Block 1, Lakewood 

Commercial Park 3
rd

 Addition, Address of 2120 40
th

 Ave. SE; Parcel #10111. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Mandan Economic Development Annual Jobs Verification & copy of 

City of Mandan Commissioner’s Meeting June 21, 2011. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $ 1527 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 12, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business 

Property Tax Exemption for Spence Koenig 

 

  

Consent No. 4v  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

Spence Koenig 

Page 2 of 7 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of adjusting the New & Expanding Business 

Property Tax exemption from 75% to 100% in the year 2014 due to meeting the 

minimum requirements of jobs creation at the end of 2013. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I recommend a motion to approve the adjustment of the New 

& Expanding Business Property Tax exemption from 75% to 100% on the structure value 

in the year 2014 due to meeting the minimum requirements of jobs creation at the end of 

2013. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

Spence Koenig 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

Spence Koenig 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

Spence Koenig 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

Spence Koenig 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction to a 5-Year New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption for 

Spence Koenig 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   Missed due to assessor error the second year of the 5-year 

tax exemption for new construction of a commercial structure for the year 2013. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Mr. Wachter qualified for the 5-Year Property 

Tax Exemption for New or Expanding Business on June 1, 2010.  He received the 

exemption in 2012; however, his tax statement did not reflect receiving it for the 2013 

year. 

 

This parcel is also known as Lot 3, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 2nd Addition at 

1816 40
th

 Ave. SE on Parcel #8253. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Minutes from June 1, 2010 and other supporting documentation 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $20,226 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of the requested 100% exemption for the newly built 

structure for the second year of the 5-Year Property Tax Exemption for New or 

Expanding Business. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I recommend a motion to approve the missed property tax 

exemption due to assessor error of the second year of the 5-Year Property Tax Exemption 

for New or Expanding Business for the 2013 year. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 16, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River 

Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013 

 

  

Consent No. 4vi  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Missed 5-Year Tax Exemption for Wind River Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a reduction in the structure value for the 

2013 year for Mr. Motl’s property, due to a complete reassessment that was done 

to reflect accurate information. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #4556, Lot 2, 

Block 93, N.P. 1st Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the structure value for the 2014 year from $99,000 to 

$73,900.  After the final walk through of Mr. Motl’s property to determine accuracy of 

our data and conducting a market analysis, I have arrived at a true and full value of 

$86,300 for the 2014 year rather than $86,300, $111,400 a difference in true and full 

value of $25,100.  

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for 2014, market analysis and data sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $355. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2014 year to $86,300 for Motl’s property. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for Motl’s property in the 

2014 year with a true and full value to $86,300. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 31, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw/Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw/Assessor  

SUBJECT: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market 

value for Lloyd Motl 

 

  

Consent No. 4vii 

Revised 1/5/15 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a reduction in the structure value for the 

2013 year for Mr. Motl’s property, due to a complete reassessment that was done 

to reflect accurate information. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #4556, Lot 2, 

Block 93, N.P. 1st Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the structure value for the 2014 year from $99,000 to 

$73,900.  After the final walk through of Mr. Motl’s property to determine accuracy of 

our data and conducting a market analysis, I have arrived at a true and full value of 

$86,300 for the 2014 year rather than $86,300, a difference in true and full value of 

$25,100.  

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for 2014, market analysis and data sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $355. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2014 year to $86,300 for Motl’s property. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for Motl’s property in the 

2014 year with a true and full value to $86,300. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 31, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw/Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw/Assessor  

SUBJECT: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market 

value for Lloyd Motl 

 

  

Consent No. 4vii 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lloyd Motl 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To correct a 5-year tax exemption for Improvements to a 

Commercial Building pursuant to North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2.  The state 

guideline states if the renovation, remodeling, alteration or addition qualifies, the last 

assessment on the building prior to the start of making the improvement remains for the 

prescribed period unless equalization or reevaluation of building values is necessary.  The 

abatement procedure is available to the property owner with regard to the value of the 

building prior to the renovation, remodeling, alteration or addition.   

 

The property tax exemption that was given in 2013 and 2014 was only a partial 

exemption (18%) and Mr. Ressler should have received 100% exemption on the 

remodeling structure value for those two years, which will continue until 2017.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:    

 

The building has 8,240 square feet known as Farmers Union, The Cakery, and Pack and 

Ship.  The renovation was for the entire building.   

 

The assessed value in 2012 on the property was $430,500, which is the last assessment on 

the building prior to the start of making the improvements.  This exemption is effective 

beginning with the first assessment date following the date of commencement, which 

would be February 1, 2013.  In 2013, we had a building value of $452,100 and it should 

have remained the same value as it was prior to the improvement, which was $430,500.  

Therefore, since there was only a partial exemption (18%) given in 2013 and the value 

was incorrect, we have made the correction for 2013 to show a true and full value of 

$432,100 rather than $508,000, a difference of $75,900.   

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 24, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax 

Exemption for Improvements to Commercial 

Building for Kevin Ressler 

 

 

  

Consent No. 4viii  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 2 of 8 

 

For the 2014 year, again, there was only a partial exemption (18%) given and the value 

was incorrect.  We have made the correction for 2014 to show a true and full value of 

$451,100 rather than $578,900, a difference of $127,800.   

 

The original partial exemption that was given was done incorrectly as it was given as if 

all these three businesses were in separate buildings.  The exemption should have been 

100% on the remodeling structure value starting in 2013.   

 

This property is also known as Parcel #1483 at 3801 Memorial Hwy. SE on Lot 3, Block 

1, Midway 10th addition. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application for property tax exemption for improvements to 

commercial building, sketch, building permits, ND state guidelines, data sheet showing 

exemption percentage given and abatement application. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $1,257 for 2013 year and approximately $2,007 for 

the 2014 year.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approve the correction of the 5-year property tax exemption 

for Mr. Kevin Ressler for 2013 and 2014 due to meeting all criteria under State Statute 

57-02.2. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   A motion to approve the correction of the 5-year remodeling 

tax exemption by Mr. Kevin Ressler for 2013 and 2014 with the project location of 3801 

Memorial Hwy. SE, due to meeting all criteria under the State Statute 57-02.2.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Correction – Assessing Error for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial Building for Kevin Ressler 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a reduction in the structure value for the 

2014 year for Ms. Carlson’s property, due to a complete reassessment that was 

done to reflect accurate information. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #5747, Lot 29, 

Block 1, Sharon Heights 1st Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the structure value for the 2014 year from $132,100 to 

$103,600.  After the final walk through of Ms. Carlson’s property to determine accuracy 

of our data and conducting a market analysis, I have arrived at a true and full value of 

$118,300 for the 2014 year rather than $146,800, a difference in true and full value of 

$13,800.  

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for 2014, market analysis and data sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $195. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2014 year to $118,300 for Carlson’s property. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for Carlson’s property in the 

2014 year with a true and full value to $118,300. 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 31, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw/Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw/Assessor  

SUBJECT: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market 

value for Lorraine Carlson 

 

  

Consent No. 4ix 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lorraine Carlson 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Complete Reassessment - Reduction in market value for Lorraine Carlson 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement 

District No. 176, Project 2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions) 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Change Order No. 8 will effectively increase the 

contract amount to reflect relatively small overruns in quantities for a few bid items. The 

extra gravel was used to repair some subgrade under the pavement in areas where it was 

deemed to be subpar. The overruns in pavement quantities reflect pavement that was laid 

just a bit thicker than planned thickness, but within the ¼” tolerance allowed. Engineering 

met with KLJ regarding these overrun quantities and agree with their recommendation to 

approve.    

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Change order No. 8 

2. District map 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   This Project is being paid for by special assessments from the 

benefiting properties within the District. This change order represents about 2.7% of the 

total original contract amount. This change order along with previous ones within the 

assessment district still keep the project cost within the estimated amount when factoring 

in contingency. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  

   review.  

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: January 2, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approval of change order for Street 

Improvement District No. 176, Project 2012-20 

(Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

 

 

  

Consent No. 5 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 201 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 2 of 5 

RECOMMENDATION:  Our office recommends approving the change order. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the change order No. 8 for Street 

Improvement District 176 Project 2012-20 in the amount of $33,166.05. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 201 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 3 of 5 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 201 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 4 of 5 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 201 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 5 of 5 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement 

District No. 176, Project 2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions) 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Change Order No. 9 will effectively increase the 

contract amount to reflect overruns in quantities for a few bid items. This overrun change 

order is to address items that were added to the contract as part of change order No. 5 and 

will not be assessed to this district. The work done associated with this change order was 

not done within this district, but rather was done to make necessary repairs to the roads 

near the new Red Trail elementary school.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Change order No. 9 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The amount within this change order is not to be assessed to this 

project, but rather paid for by highway distribution tax funding. There is money in the 

highway distribution tax account to cover this change order.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  

   review.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Our office recommends approving the change order. 

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: January 2, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approval of change order for Street 

Improvement District No. 176, Project 2012-20 

(Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

 

 

  

Consent No. 6 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 2 of 4 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the change order No. 9 for Street 

Improvement District 176 Project 2012-20 in the amount of $32,655.87. 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 3 of 4 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject:  Consider approval of change order for Street Improvement District 176, Project 

2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions). 

Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

        

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Introduction of Police Officer Tricia Schmeichel 

  

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   

Tricia is a 2014 graduate of the ND Law Enforcement Training Academy in Bismarck.  

She has successfully completed her field training with the police department and 

presently is assigned to a uniform patrol position.  Tricia earned her AS/AA Degree in 

Criminal Justice from Bismarck State College.  Currently she is working on a BS Degree 

in Criminal Justice through Minot State University.  

 

Prior to attending the training academy Tricia work security with the ND Highway Patrol 

providing security of buildings on the Capitol Grounds and the Law Enforcement 

Training Academy.  

                

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:N/A   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  

 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 18, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

PRESENTER: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

SUBJECT: Introduction of Police Officer 

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 
  

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE. 
 

Two positions expired in 2014.  New appointments are needed. 
 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES. 
 

Notice was given requesting that persons submit letters of interest to serve on the Planning and 

Zoning Commission.  A total of 5 responses were received.  One response was from a resident in 

the extraterritorial area.  The county appoints persons from the extraterritorial area. 

 

Bill Robinson, current P&Z president expressed interest in being reappointed for another term.  

The other three applicants were Curtis Patzell, Robert Vayda and Chris Beach. 

 

The applicants were invited to make statements of interest at the October meeting and again at 

the December meeting. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a ballot at the December meeting.  There were 

7 members present and the votes were: 

 

Bill Robinson   7 

Chris Beach   3 

Bob Vayda   2 

Curtis Patzell   2 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission then took formal action to recommend that Bill Robinson 

and Chris Beach be appointed to the Planning and Zoning Commission for 5 year terms 

beginning January 1, 2015. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. P&Z meeting agenda documentation 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: December 23, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider appointments to Planning and Zoning 

Commission 

 

  

New Business No. 2 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Recommendation for appointment of members of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 
 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Appoint applicants to Planning and Zoning Commission as recommended by P&Z Commission. 
 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
  

Move to appoint Bill Robinson and Chris Beach to 5 year terms on the Planning and Zoning 

Commission with a term of office beginning January 1, 2015. 

 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2015 

Subject: Recommendation for appointment of members of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Documentation 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE.  There are two positions that have terms expiring in 2014.  The city 

commission has asked the Planning and Zoning Commission to recommend two people to be 

appointed to serve on the Planning and Zoning Commission for 5 year terms beginning January 

1, 2015. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES. 

Notice was given requesting that persons submit letters of interest to serve on the Planning and 

Zoning Commission.  A total of 5 responses were received.  One response was from a resident in 

the extraterritorial area.  The county appoints persons from the extraterritorial area. 

 

Bill Robinson, current P&Z president expressed interest in being reappointed for another term.  

The other three applicants are Curtis Patzell, Robert Vayda and Chris Beach. 

 

 Bill has been a member of P&Z since 1995 and works at Northland Financial. 

 Curtis recently retired from Wal-Mart where he was a store manager in Bismarck. 

 Bob is retired.  He worked for Basin Electric Power Coop.  He currently serves on the 

Architectural Review Commission and the Renaissance Zone Committee. 

 Chris Beach recently moved to Mandan and has experience with planning activities 

where he formerly lived in Minnesota. 

 

All applicants are well qualified to serve.  Bill has the experience of chairing the P&Z.  Curtis 

has years of experience in the metropolitan area in a retail environment which is one of the types 

of activities we would like to encourage within the city.  Bob is already serving on two 

committees for the city so he is familiar with city government.  Chris has experience in another 

state with similar activities. 

 

 

 

MEETING 

DATE: 

December 22, 2014 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Recommend applicants for appointment to Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

  



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider amendments to the sick leave accrual and add 

long term disability to our benefit package.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In essence current Mandan Code of Ordinances 

provides for sick leave as follows: 

 8 hours accrual per month 

 Unlimited carryover 

 Employee reaches age 62-65 and terminates employment; payout of unused sick 

leave is 1/3 of the hours accumulated with a 480 hour maximum payout. 

 Employee reached age 65 and terminates employment; payout of unused sick 

leave is hour for hour with a 480 hour maximum payout. 

 

Opportunities exist to improve our sick leave policy for the following reasons: 

 Most employees do not have sufficient accumulated hours to ensure income 

through periods of a disability. Average hours of accrued sick leave per employee 

is 652 or 8 pay periods (4 months) 

 Employees that terminate employment prior to age 62 receive no benefit for hours 

accrued. 

 Significant liability for unused sick leave absences. 

 City is lacking Long Term Disability (LTD) coverage for employees 

 

Proposal: Take into consideration our current employees and plans they may have made 

under the current policy, provide a LTD policy for all employees, provide a benefit for 

healthy lifestyles by paying out a portion of unused sick leave, and ensure that no one 

loses in any change in policy. 

 

 Create Sick Bank A – Freeze (Grandfather in Accrual Balances as of December 

31, 2014) 

MEETING DATE: January 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: January 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Kevin Wilson, Human Resources 

SUBJECT: Proposed Change in Sick Leave and Long Term 

Disability 

 

  

New Business No. 3  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 

Subject: Proposed Change in Sick Leave and Long Term Disability 

Page 2 of 3 

 

o Balance is available for future employee needs until exhausted 

o Upon retirement, employee’s ages 62 through 64 will be compensated for 

one-third of their accumulated sick leave up to 480 hours. 

o An employee age 65 or older will be compensated for all accumulated sick 

leave not exceeding 480 hours.  

o An employee age 65 or older will be compensated for all accumulated sick 

leave not exceeding 480 hours. 

 

 Create Sick hour Bank B. Set Bank B accrual hour maximum at 960 for 

employees and 1320 for firefighters.  

o No carryover.  

o When Bank A balance is exhausted Bank B balances will be utilized.  

o Existing employee accrual rate of 3.69 and 5.07 for firefighters would 

apply to Bank B. (in essence the 8 hour / month benefit) 

o Employees hired after January 1, 2015 are not eligible for retirement 

benefit. (because after max of 960 is reached a payout of 40% of unused 

over 960 is available) 

 

 Propose Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit 

o Benefits are designed to pay eligible employees for a maximum benefit 

period which can last to social security normal retirement age. 

o Based on proposed benefits, an eligible employees receives 66.67% of 

monthly income (Max $6,000 monthly benefit) if they cannot work due to 

sickness or nonworking related disabling injury. 

o There is an elimination period (no benefit until 180, roughly 960 hours, 

days of disability have occurred) 

 

We have requested input from management staff and employees as follows: 

 Several discussion at management team meetings 

 Provided presentation to employees via email requesting input 

 Held two information sessions for employees to hear/see the presentation 

requesting input and answering questions 

 

The proposal has received positive feedback. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   See attached presentation 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Estimated LTD Cost $1,564.85/month based on 124 employees, or 

$12.62/month per employee. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  To City Attorney for Review 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 

Subject: Proposed Change in Sick Leave and Long Term Disability 

Page 3 of 3 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approval of the suggested changes to the sick 

leave policy and to establish a long term disability policy as part of the City of Mandan’s 

benefit package. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the suggested changes to the sick leave 

policy and to establish a long term disability policy as part of the City of Mandan’s 

benefit package, and to have City Attorney Brown draft the necessary ordinance 

amendments to implement such change. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Sick Time & LTD Coverage 
Proposal For Establishing: 
Long Term Disability Coverage 
Maximum Hour Accumulation Policy 
& Sick Hour Buyback Policy 



In the past few years a number of employees have had medical 
conditions requiring extensive use of their accumulated sick and 
vacation hours to get through a period when they could not work.  

 



In 2014, the city 
established a policy 
whereby employees could 
donate hours to a stricken 
employee to help 
continue a paycheck 
when an employee hour 
balance was low, due to a 
medical condition.  



 
In the course of establishing this policy it was 

noted that most employees do not have 
sufficient accumulated hours to ensure their 

income through periods of disability.  



The city is proposing to secure Long Term Disability 
(LTD) coverage for its employees, and establish a sick 
hour buyback and maximum hour accumulation policy.  
 

Proposal 



Social Security and Disability 
According to the Social Security Administration, fifty-six million 

Americans, or 1-in-5, live with disabilities.  



Social Security and Disability 

Thirty-eight million disabled Americans, 
or 1-in-10, live with severe disabilities.  

 



Disability is something many Americans, especially 
younger people, read or hear about happening to others. 
 



Social Security and Disability 

Statistics show, before reaching retirement age, more than 1-in-4 of 
disability insured 20-year-olds become disabled. As a result, they may 

need to rely on the Social Security disability benefits for income support. 
 



At the beginning of 2014, Social Security paid an average monthly 
disability benefit of $1,146. That is exactly the 2013 poverty level 
($11,490 annually) for an individual. For many beneficiaries, their 

monthly disability payment represents most of their income. 



 
WHAT’S MY PDQ?  

(Personal Disability Quotient)  
Calculate yours at: www.whatsmypdq.org 

 
An average American female, age 35, 5’4", 125 pounds, 
non-smoker, who works mostly an office job, with some 

outdoor physical responsibilities, and who leads a healthy 
lifestyle has the following risks: 

 

If this same person used tobacco and weighed 160 pounds, the risk would 
increase to a 41% chance of becoming disabled for 3 months or longer. 

 
Council on Disability Awareness (CDA)  
Personal Disability Quotient (PDQ) Calculator 
http://www.whatsmypdq.org  

A 24% chance of becoming disabled for 3 months or longer during her 
working career; with a 38% chance that the disability would last 5 years 

or longer, and with her average disability lasting 82 months. 
 



 
WHAT’S MY PDQ?  

(Personal Disability Quotient)  
Calculate yours at: www.whatsmypdq.org 

If this same person used tobacco and weighed 210 pounds, the risk would 
increase to a 45% chance of becoming disabled for 3 months or longer. 

 
 

An average American male, age 35, 5’10", 170 pounds, non-
smoker, who works an office job, with some outdoor 

physical responsibilities, and who leads a healthy lifestyle 
has the following risks: 

 A 21% chance of becoming disabled for 3 months or longer 
during his working career; With a 38% chance that the disability 
would last 5 years or longer, with his average disability lasting  

82 months. 



Factors that increase the risk of disability 

Obesity 

Diabetes 

Sleep 
Apnea 

Cancer Heart 
Disease 

Chronic 
Pain 



Factors that increase the risk of disability 

Smoking 

Cancer 

Stroke 

Asthma C.O.P.D. 

Heart 
Disease 



Factors that decrease the overall risk of disability  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Healthy Weight/Diet 

No Tobacco 

Managing Stress  

Healthy Sleep Habits 

Exercise 

No 
Substance 

Abuse 

Overall Risk 



Mandan Employee Sick Pay Average Accrual Balance 

Current sick pay has no accrual maximum and no options when sick pay is exhausted.  

As of September 2014  
 

Average Employee Sick Balance  
652 hours  

or  
8.15 pay periods.  

 



Propose Sick Policy Bank (A)  
Freeze (Grandfather) Accrual Balance 

Effective December 31, 
2014.   

• Freeze employee earned and accrued sick hour’s balances  

• Balance is available for future employee needs until exhausted 

• Upon retirement, employees ages 62 through 64 will be compensated 
for one-third of their accumulated sick leave up to 480 hours.  

• An employee age 65 or older will be compensated for all accumulated 
sick leave not exceeding 480 hours.  

• Bank A and Bank B balances will be combined to compute this 
benefit. 



Propose Sick Policy Bank (B)  
Employee 960 Hour & Firefighter 1320 Hour Maximums 

Establish January 1, 2015  

• Sick hour Bank B. Set Bank B accrual hour maximum at 
960 for employees and 1320  for firefighters.  

• No carryover.  
• When Bank A balance is exhausted Bank B balances will be 

utilized.  

• Existing employee accrual rate of 3.69 and 5.07 for 
firefighters would apply to Bank B. 

• Employees hired after January 1, 2015 are not eligible 
for retirement benefit.  



Propose Eligible Employee 40% Sick Hour Payout 

Payout is based on pay rate in effect December 31, each year.  

Effective December 31, 2015 and December 31st of each successive 
year, eligible employees would be paid at a rate of 40% of unused 
hours exceeding 960 for employees and 1320 hours for firefighters.  

Effective January 1st, employees receiving payouts will have their 
accrual balances reset to 960/1320. 

Payment shall be made the first payroll in February. 



Propose Long Term Disability Insurance Benefit 

Long Term Disability insurance (LTD) is insurance that protects an 
employee from loss of income in the event they’re unable to work for 

a long period of time, due to illness, injury, or accident.  

Bank B 960 hour maximum represents 12 pay periods, employee 
sick accrual (October 2014) average equals 8.15 pay periods and 

the CDA cites a 38% chance of a disability lasting 5 years or 
longer or 130 pay periods,  

LTD insurance is part of a comprehensive benefit package but does 
not provide insurance for work-related accidents or injuries covered 

by workers' compensation insurance. 



Disability Benefit Summary Proposal 
• Benefits (LTD) are designed to pay eligible employees for a maximum 

benefit period which can last to social security normal retirement age 
(SSNRA).  

• Normal Retirement Age (NRA), also referred to as "Full Retirement 
Age," varies from age 65 to age 67 by year of birth. 

• Based on proposed benefits an eligible employee receives 66.67% of 
monthly income (maximum $6000 monthly benefit) if they cannot work 
due to sickness or nonworking related disabling injury. 

• Elimination Period 180 days or 13 pay periods.  
• This means no benefit until 180 days of disability have occurred. 



Disability Benefit Summary Proposal 

• Monthly benefits are determined by the average 12 month 
preceding period. 

• Benefit Integration Primary and Family.  

• Most group plans assume disability benefits or payments from other sources (SSDI, 
Workers’ Compensation, etc.) may be received by the claimant and construct policies so 
that the amount payable may be reduced by the amounts payable by other plans.  

• This is an important claims management tool because return to work efforts stand to 
be compromised if the disabled worker earns more in disability than in active work. 



Estimated Monthly LTD Cost 
Monthly cost = $1564.85   

 
Based on 124 employees or $12.62 per 

employee per month. 



ADDED New Business #4

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

MW H ERE T HE WEST B EG IN S"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTM ENT:
DEPARTM ENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUB.JECT:

STATEMENT/PURPOSE :

January 6, 20 I5
January 6, 20 I5
Engineering, Wastewater Treatment Plant
Justin Froseth
Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director
Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility
Interim Optimization Project

This item is to inform commi ssion of the Addendum #2, which was issued this morning .
for the Wastewater Treatment Facility Project. In addition to many clarification items,
this addendum will change the bid opening from Thursday, January 8th to Tuesday,
January 13th

•

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:

An advertised walk through of the project was held on Monday, January 5th
• Ideally a

project walk through is held about a week before bid opening date, but in this case, the
holiday season would have likely affected attendance, so it was decided to conduct after.
As a result of the well attended walk through clarification type questions were raised of
the project which have been addressed by AE2S in addendum #2. Though addendum #2
is not needed to address any significant scope changes, it does address a relatively
substant ial amount of clar ifications. It was decided that in order for all potentia l bidders
to be able to give addendum #2 items proper review, and ultimate ly realize the best bid
price for the city, it would be prudent to postpone the bid opening until Tuesday, January
13th

• It is anticipated that this change will still allow the bid results to come forward at the
January zo" commission meeting, the original schedule.

The Wastewater Treatment Facility Optimization Project includes rehabilitation of the
existing pretreatment building (i.e. new electrical, process, mechanical, and odor control
equipment), expansion of blower capacity along with modifications to the existing blower
building, new ultra violet disinfection equipment and channel modifications. underground
yard piping modifications, and miscellaneous aeration pond improvements.



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 2 of 9

ATTACHMENTS:
I) Addendum #2

FISCAL IMPACT:
No direct fiscal impact resulting from Addendum #2.

STAFF IMPACT:
Minimal

LEGAL REVIEW:
Attorney Brown was consulted on this item and suggested it be brought before
commission as an informational item.

RECOMM ENDATION:
None. For Information.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
None. For Information



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 3 of9

ADDENDUM NO. 2

January 6, 2014

TO

PROJECT MANUAL

FOR

This do cum ent was
orig inally issued and soaroo

by
Kenneth J . Webe r, PE.

Reqlst ratlon Number 6427
on

January 6,2015
and tho orig inAl do cuments

ti ro stored al lhe o flice of
Adva nced EngIneering &

Environmental Serv ices . Inc.

MANDAN WWTF INTERIM OPTIMIZATION

FO R

CITY OF MANDAN

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

DECEMBER 2014

The following changes, additions, and deletions are hereby made a part of the Bidding
Documents for the MANDAN WWrF INTERIM OPT/MIZATION project as fully and completely as
if the same were set forth therein. Acknowledge receipt of this addendum in the space provided
on the Bid Form and also on the outside of the Bid envelope. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY
RESULT IN REJECTION OF BID.

This addendum consists of Seven (7) pages and one (1) attachmen ts (3 pages).

SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION 00 11 13 ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

1. Page 00 11 13·1 . Remove the bid date of "January 8, 20 1 5~ and Rep lac e with "January 13,
2015". The bid time and locatio n will remain the same.

SECTION 00 41 00 BID FORM - ADDE NDUM NO. 1

1. Page 00 41 00 - 3: Clarification Contract NO. 1 - Gene ral Construction bid to include UV
Disinfection Equipment user tax as part of base bid for "All Other General Construction
Work".

2. Page 00 41 00 - 4: Clarification Contract NO.4 - Combined Construction bid to include UV
Disinfection Equipment user tax as part of base bid for "All Other Work".

SECTION 00 30 05 SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Page 00 3005 -5. Add Paragraph 1.19:

"1.19. OWNER FURNISHED EQUIPMENT
1. UV Disinfec tion Equipment per 46 66 05

Mandan WWTF Interim Optimization
January 6, 2014 Addendum NO. 2 · 1

Mandan, North Dakota
P00510-2012-006



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 4 of 9

The City of Mandan has pre-procured and will supply the UV disinfection equipment as
outline in Section 46 66 05. The equipment supplier's price includes shipping,
submittals, supplier sponsored trips. installation support. startup. and warranty site
visits. The General Contractor is required to include sales tax for the equ ipment, labor,
materials, equipment, and appurtenances as needed for installation. The City has
purchased the equipment for $169,300.00, as detailed in the supplier's bid in
Attachment 1 of the referenced sect ion. Cont ractor is requ ired to include in his bid all
sa les tax for the full purchase amount."

SECTION 23 05 90 - BASIC RESULTS FOR HVAC TE STING ADJUSTING, AND BALANCING
- ADDENDUM NO. 2

1. ADD and SECT ION 23 05 90 BASIC RESULTS FOR HVAC TESTING, ADJUST ING, AND
BALANCING - AD DENDUM NO. 2 to the speci fications.

SECTION 23 31 00 - HVAC DUCTS A ND CASINGS

1. Paragraph 3.02.A - Add "Sp unstrand" as an approved manufacturer .

2. Paragraph 3.03.A - Add "Norlock" as an app roved manufacturer.

SECTION 23 33 00 - AIR DUCT ACC ESSO RIES

1. Parag raph 2.03.A ~ Add "Greenheck" as an approved manufac turer.

SECTION 23 63 13 A IR COOLED CONDENSING UNITS

1. Parag raph 2.01.A - Add "Lennox" as an approved manufacturer.

SECTION 23 82 19 FAN CO IL UNITS

1. Paragraph 2.01.A - Add "Lennox" as an approved manufacturer.

SECTION 23 98 50 - HVAC SEQ UENCES OF OPERATION

1. Replace Paragraph 3.02.8 in ent irety with the following :

"B, ODOR CO NTR OL BUILDING HEATING & VENTILATION SYSTEM:

Make-up air un it OC~MAU~1 and exhaust fan OC-EF -1 :

The mak e-up air unit shall have a control panel with an ON-OFF-AUTO fan switch,
burner, blower and dirt y filter lights and a space temperature controller. A low limit
stat located in the discharge of MAU~1 shall shut down system when ever discha rge
temperature drops below 35 degrees (adjustable) . The control pane l will be
mounted where indicated in the adjacent Pump Room . Control sequence shall be
as follows:

Fan swit ch in the "ON" posi tion:

1. The make-up air unit shall operate and run continuously at 100% outside air
unless shut-down by a safety feature. The out side air damper shall fully

Mandan WWTF fnterim Optimization
January 6. 2014 Addendum No. 2 ~ 2

Mandan, North Dakota
P00510-2012-006



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 20 IS
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatme nt Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 5 of9

open and the retu rn air damper shall fully close .

Fan switch in the "AUTO" positio n:

2. When the space is "Occupied" as dictated by an interlock with the space
lighti ng circuit, the make-up air un it shall operate at 100% outside air with
the return damper fully closed . The unit wi ll run continuously at 100%
outside air until the space lighting circu it is turn ed off and the space is no
longer "Occupied" at which point the outside air dam per shall close to 25%
outside air and the relurn air damper shall be at 75% return air.

3. When the Combustible Gas Detector senses a LEL of 10 percent or greater
level of gases in the space an interlock shall operate at 100% outside air
wit h the retu rn dam per fully closed. The unit will run continuously at 100%
outsi de air until the space gas detector level falls below a safe level at
which point the outside air damper shall close to 25% outside air and the
retu rn air damper shall be at 75% return air.

Sys tem in the W INTER mode:

4 . The make-up air unit burner sha ll modul ate as required to maintain. the
space temperature set-point. as set by the air temp eratur e controller
moun ted on the control panel.

A manua l reset, stainless stee l freeze stat in the discha rge of the make-up unit
shall shut the unit off if supply air tem perature is below set point, 35 deg rees.

All senso rs and control devices in the mak e-up air unit airstream shall be
constructed of corrosion resistant stainless steel.

The intake air damper should fully close and the return air dampe r shall fully open
whenever the make-up air unit is shut down by any safety device.
The exhaust fan , OC-EF-1 shall be interlocke d to operate and open whenever the
mak e-up air un it is opera ting at 100% outside air.

The Combustible Gas Detector shall be furni shed and install ed by Division 26.

Make-up air un it vender sha ll provide one, 2 pole interposing relay to be energized
upon combustible gas or H2S detecti on (Detector/ control circui try by others).
Mechanical contractor to wire 1 set of dry contacts to the mak e-up air unit control
panel, and the other set of dry contacts sha ll be ava ilable and labeled to be
circuited to the custome rs SCADA control panel (by others) .

Th e space temperatu re controller, contacts for exhaust fan , contacts fo r
"Occup ied/Un occupied", contacts for "On" operation and unit mounted damper
actuato rs and control panel shall be furnished with the make-up air unit and
installed by Mechanica l contractor.

All interlocks and cont rol wiring to be furnished and installed by the Mechanical
contractor. Coordinate control wiring terminat ion point with Division 26. All control
wi ring to be rou ted in a ded icated conduit in accordance to the Div ision 26
standa rds. All power wiring to be by Division 26."

Mandan WWTF Interim Optimization
January 6, 2014 Addendum NO. 2 - 3

Mandan , North Dakota
P005 10-2012-006



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 6 0f9

2. Replace Paragraph 3.02 .0 in entirety with the following:

"D. SCREENING ROOM HEAT ING & VENT ILATION SYSTEM :

Make-up air unit PTB-MAU -1 with z-postt ton discharge air dampers , exhaust fan
PTB -EF-1 with 120V explos ion-proo f motorized dampers and Odor Control Fan :

The make-up air unit to be provide d with a VFO for 2-speed control and the
exhaust fan PTB-EF-1 shall be provided with a VFD for balancing.

The make-up air unit shall have a contro l panel wit h an ON-OFF fan switch. burner.
blower and dirty filter lights and discharge air temperature selecto r. An air
temperature sensor , in the intake plenum, sha ll automatically switch the unit
between Winter and Summer mode whe neve r the outside air temperature is
below/above 50 deg rees (adjustable) . The control pane l will be mo unted where
indicated on the plans. Co ntrol sequence shall be as follows:

System switch in the ON posi tion :

1. Whe n the Room is "Occupied " as dictated by an inter lock with the space
ligh ting circuit , the make-up air unit sha ll ope rate at "High" speed . The unit
will run cont inuously at "High speed " until the space light ing circuit is turned
off and the space is no longer "Occupied ". When the Roo m is
"Unoccup ied" the make-up air unit will return to "Low spee d" opera tion.

2. When the Combustible Gas Detector senses a LEL of 10 percent or greate r
level of gases in the space an interlock shall operate the make-up air unit at
"High" spee d. The unit will run continuously at "High spee d" until the space
gas detector leve l fa lls below a safe level at which point the make-up air
unit will return to "Low speed " ope ration.

System in the W INTER mode:

3. A temperature selector mounted on the make-up air unit control panel shall
modulate the burner in make-up air unit MAU~1 as required to maintain the
discharge air temperature set point, (adjustable from 40 to 80 degrees).

System in the SUMMER mode :

4. The make-up air unit sha ll ope rate as indica ted above except the burners
will be "off' and no heating wi ll be provided.

A manual reset, stainless steel f reeze stat in the disc harge of the make-up un it
shall shut the unit off if supp ly air temperature is below set point, (35 degrees).
The alarm light sha ll be energize d when the unit shuts down on low temperatu re, a
relay for remote ind ication of alarm shall be provided .

All sensors and control devices in the make-up air unit airstream shall be
constructed of corrosion resis tant stainless steel.

The discharge air damper sho uld fully open when-e ver the unit is energized and

Mandan WWTF Interim Optimization
January 6,2014 Addendum No. 2 ~ 4

Mandan , North Dakota
P005 1 0~20 1 2 ·006



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 7 0f 9

fully close whe n-ever the make-up air unit is shut down by any safety dev ice.

The Odor Contro l exhaust fan shall be interlocked to operate whenever the make
up air unit is operating .

The exhaust fan, PTB-EF-1, and its associ ated motorized damper with explosion
proof actuator shall be inter locked to opera te and open whenever the make- up air
unit is opera ting on "High speed".

A low limit alarm shall be provided by Division 26, which will signa l whenever the
space temperature falls below set point, 35 degrees .

The Comb ustible Gas Detector shall be furnished and installed by Division 26.

Make-up air unit vender shall provide one, 2 pole interposing relay to be energ ized
upon combus tible gas or H2S detect ion (Detector! contro l circuitry by othe rs).
Mechanical contractor to wire 1 set of dry contacts to the make -up air unit control
panel, and the other set of dry contacts shall be available and labeled to be
circuited to the customers SCADA control panel (by others) .

The temperature set-point controller, contacts for "Occ upied/Unoccupied", contacts
for exhaus t fan, unit damper actuators, VFD controller and all othe r control devices
required to opera te as described and control panel shall be fu rnished with the
make-up air unit and installed by the Mechanical Cont ractor.

The exhaust fan VFD, all interlocks, relays, damper actua tors and control wiring to
be furnished and insta lled by the Mechanical Contractor. Coordinate control wiring
terminat ion point with Division 26. All contro l wiring to be routed in a dedicated
condu it in accordance to the Division 26 standards . All power wiri ng to be furnished
and installed by Division 26 ."

SEC TION 33 3119 SITE PIPING

1. Page 33 31 19 - 8. Add Paragraph D 102.03:

"D. Buried Watermai n 1" - 3" Diameter :
1. As specified in the Construction Drawings, or:
2. Pipe , fittings , and valves shall be gasketed joint, IPS 200 Pressure Class

PVC .
3. Pipe , fittings , and valves shall be installed in comp liance with

manufacturer's recommendations and in accordance with ASTM 02274.
And shall be restrained jo int."

Mandan WWTF Interim Optimization
January 6,2014 Addendum NO. 2 - 5

Mandan, North Dakota
P00510-2012-006



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 8 of9

PROJECT DRA WINGS

CHANGES TO DRAWINGS - GE N

1. Drawing GEN-P1: Remove and Replace process note 6 as follows.

"6. PROV IDE 1/2" THICK DIAMOND INTERLOCKING RUBB ER MAT OVER CHANNEL
GRATING EXTENDING 6" (MINIMUM) BEYOND CHANNEL WIDTH AND LEN GTH
(TYPICAL). COORDINATE W ITH MECHANICAL DUCT CONNECTIONS"

CHANGES TO DRAW INGS SW

1. Drawing SW-C4: Remove and Replace general note 2 as follows.

"2. ANY PROPOSED PIPE W ITH LESS THAN 4' OF COVER SHALL BE INSULATED
ACCO RDING TO THE SPECIFICAT IONS. (DOES NOT APPLY TO FOOT ING DRAINS AND
STORMWATER PIPE)"

2. Drawing SW-C5: Remove and Replace general note 2 as follows.

"2. ANY PROP OSED PIPE W ITH LESS THAN 4' OF COVER SHALL BE INSULATED
ACCORDING TO THE SPEC IFICAT IONS. (DOES NOT APPLY TO FOOTING DRAINS AND
STO RMWATER PIPE)"

3. Drawing SW-E1: Add Conduit to 1014 from the UV buildingto the pull box. Add conduit 10
1015 fromthe pull box to the odor control building.

CHANGES TO DRAWINGS - PTB

1. Drawing PTB-E2: Revise Constructionnote7: LPT transformer from 10KVA 480:120/208-3P
to 15KVA 480:120/208-3P.

2. Drawing PTB-E2: Remove and Replace Construction note 7 as follows.

"EXISTING FLOW INDICAT OR AND TRAN SMITTER TO REMA IN. PROVIDE NEW
CIRCUITRY (CAB LE AND CO NDUIT) TO THE EXISTING FLOW METER LE-1 AND ALL
OTHER CIRCUITRY ASSOCIATED WITH THE FLOW INDICATOR AND TRAN SMITTER
W ITHIN THE ELECTR ICAL ROOM."

CHANGES TO DRAWINGS - OC

1. DrawingOC-S1- FOUNDATION PLAN: Revise the overhang of the mat stabof the biofilter
from 6-inches to 18-inches.

2. Drawing OC-S3-BIOFILTER LONGIT BUILDING SECTION: Revise the overhang of the mat
slab of the biofilter from 6-inches to 18-inches.

3. Drawing OC-S4-BIOFILTER TRANSV BUILDING SECTION: Revi se the overhang of Ihe mat
slab of the blofllter from6-inches to 18-inches.

Mandan WWTF Interim Optimization
January 6, 2014 Addendum NO. 2 - 6

Mandan, North Dakota
P00510-2012-006



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: January 6, 2015
Subject: Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
Page 9 of9

4. Drawing OC·E1 : Revi se Cabl e and conduit tag pertaining to PH SENSOR in manhole. Rev ise
conduit 10 1141 funning to the PH SENSO R from the PH TRANSMITTER to be 1142.
Remove conduit 10 1143 adjacent PH sensor.

CHANGES TO DRAWIN GS - BB

1. Drawin g BB·A2 - Doo r Schedule: Remove lock "ND70PD+ND25D" for door 100.2 and
Rep lace with "99·L + 9g·EO".

2. Drawing BB-E2: Add Genera l note 3: All new exposed conduit shall be rigid aluminum unless
noted otherwise.

3. Drawing BB-E2 : Revi se indicatio n of constr uction note 9 adjace nt to conduit to 1031 and
1032 for the harm onic filters on the east wall south of the double doors Rev ise from
const ruction note 9 to construction note 1.

CHANGES TO DRAWINGS SO

1. Drawin gs SD~E2 : Rev ise fixture schedule to Add approved manufactu rers and cata log
num bers for given fixture type as follows :

a) Add approved equipme nt for type A - Manufacturer Indatech Lighting - Cata log number
HXP FL4-BO-U-35K-SMK .

b) Ad d approved equipme nt for type AE - Manufa cturer Indatech Lighting - Catalog number
HXP FL4-BO-U-35K-EM -SMK.

c) Add app roved equipme nt for type B - Manufacturer Columbia Lighting - Catalog number
LXEM4-35LW-DFA-EU.

d) Add approved equipme nt for type C - Manufacturer Spaulding Lighting - Catalog number
TRP -30L4K-053-3-U-DB-PC.

e) Add app roved equipme nt for type EX - Manufacturer DualLit e - Catalog number
XPEWS REI.

f) Add approved equipme nt for type EX2 - Manufa cturer Compass - Catalog number CCR
Series.

2. Drawings SD~E3 : Remove conduit ID 1008 from cable and conduit schedu le.

3. Drawings SD-E3: Rev ise conduit ID 1012 from 12-1/C-#14 to 6-1/C-# 14.

ATTACHMENT LIST TO THIS AD DEN DUM

1. SECTION 23 05 90 - BASIC RESULTS FOR HVAC TESTIN G. ADJUSTING. AND
BALAN CING - ADDENDUM NO. 2- (3 Pages)

Mandan WWTF Interim Optimization
January 6,2014 Addendum NO. 2 - 7

Mandan, Nonh Dakota
P0051 0~20 1 2~006



IRes. & Ord. No.1 I

ORDINANCE NO. 1196

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact
Chapter 12-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances

Relating to Class WB License

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows:

Section 12-02-04.1 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and
re-enacted to read as follows:

1. A Class WB license may be issued only to a domestic winery or brewery
owner or operator who obtains a license from the Office of the Attorney General allowing
the production of wine or beer.

2. A Class WB license will authorize the licensee to sell, on the winery or
brewery premises, wine or beer produced by that winery or brewery on the premises at
on-sale or off-sale, in retail lots, and not for resale, in total quantities not in excess of
W,OOO harrels in a calendar year that permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and amendments
thereto. In the absence of another appropriate license, sales or delivery of on-sale or
off-sale wine, or any other alcoholic beverage produced off the premises shall not be
permitted. Licenses under this section entitle the licensee to sell beer manufactured on the
premises for off-premises consumption, in brewery-sealed containers ef net less than
ene half galIen [1.89 liters] and net mere than three gallens [11.36 liters] in quantities
permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and amendments thereto

3. A Class WB license will authorize the licensee to utilize special event
permits issued by the Office of the Attorney General.

4. A Class WB license holder may:
illl Sell and deliver beer produced by the brewery to licensed beer

wholesalers.
{Q} Dispense free samples of beer offered for sale. Complimentary

samples of beer may not be in an amount exceeding that permitted by
N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and amendments thereto, per patron.

{£) Sell and deliver beer produced by the brewery to licensed retailers
within the state, but only if:
ill The brewer uses the brewer's own equipment, trucks, and

employees to deliver the beer;
ill Individual deliveries, other than draft beer, are limited to the

case equivalent of that permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and
amendments thereto, to each licensed retailer;

ill The total amount of beer sold or delivered directly to all
retailers does not exceed that permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21
and amendments thereto; and



@ A common carrier is not used to ship or deliver the brewery's
product to the public or to licensed retailers. All other sales
and deliveries of beer to licensed retailers in this state may be
made only through a wholesaler licensed in this state.

+. 2, The Class WB license shall be governed by all the provisions of this chapter
generally applicable to all license qualifications.

~ 6. The fee for a Class WB license shall be as determined by resolution of the
Board of City Commissioners.

President, Board of City Commissioners
Attest:

City Administrator

First Consideration: December 16, 2014

Second Consideration
and Final Passage: January 6, 2015


	Agenda January 6, 2015
	Minutes December 8, 2014 Special Mtg.
	Minutes December 16, 2014 Regular Mtg.
	Community Beautification Committee (CBC) appointments
	Animal Control Officer Position hours
	Budget Amendment for Skid steer broom
	Remove Value to exempt status - Mandan Park District
	Complete Reassessment - Value Change on Land - Michael Martin
	Assessor Error - missed 2-yr tax exemption - Jamie & Carina Friesz for 2014
	Correction to 5-yr. New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption - High Plains Apache
	Correction to 5-yr. New & Expanding Business Property Tax Exemption - Spence Koenig
	Missed 5-yr. Tax Exemption - Wind River Properties (WW Ranch) for 2013
	Complete Reassessment - reduction in market value - Lloyd Motl - revised
	Complete Reassessment - reduction in market value - Lloyd Motl
	Correction - assessing error for Property Tax Exemption for Impr. to Commercial Bldg. - Kevin Ressler
	Complete reassessment - reduction in market value - Lorraine Carlson
	Change order No. 8 for SID 176, Proj. 2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions) 
	Change order No. 9 for SID 176, Proj. 2012-20 (Lakewood 6th & 7th Additions)
	Introduction of Police Officer - Tricia Schmeichel
	Appointments to Planning & Zoning Commission
	Proposed Change in Sick Leave & Long Term Disability - board documentation
	Long Term Disability Coverage Presentation
	Addendum #2 for Wastewater Treatment Facility Interim Optimization Project
	Ord. 1196 Amend and Re-enact Class WB License - 2nd Consideration



